8:41: 04 AM

CALL TO ORDER

Vice Chair

HOUSE FI NANCE COW TTEE

nmeeting to order at 8:41 a.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representati ve
Representati ve
Representative
Representati ve
Representati ve
Representative
Representati ve
Representati ve
Representative

VEMBERS ABSENT

April 3, 2014
8:41 a. m
Neuman called the House Finance
Mar k Neunman, Vice-Chair

Ma Costello
Bryce Edgnon

Les Gara

David Guttenberg
Li ndsey Hol nes
Cat hy Munoz

St eve Thonpson
Tammi e W1 son

Comm ttee

Representati ve Al an Austernan, Co-Chair

Representative Bill Stoltze, Co-Chair

ALSO PRESENT

Representative Benjam n Nageak, Sponsor; WMary Schlosser,
Staff, Representative Benjamin Nageak; D ane  Kyser,
Proprietor, Artems Enterprise; Victoria Dance, Mssage
Therapi st, Juneau; Sara Chanbers, Director, Division of
Cor porations, Business, and Public Licensing, Departnent of
Commerce, Community and Econom c Devel opnent; Chere Klein,

Staff,

Representative Peggy W/ son;
Di vi sion of Mdtor Vehicles,

PRESENT VI A TELECONFERENCE

Jill Mtz, Licensed Mssage Therapi st,

River; Amanda Unser, Al aska WMassage Therapy
Coalition, Anchorage; Vol ker Ruby, Self, Anchorage.
SUVMVARY

HB 293 BEAR LI CENSE PLATES

House Fi nance Committee 1

Ay Erickson
Depart ment of Adm nistration.

Di rector,

Chugi ak and Eagl e

Li censi ng

04/03/14 8:41 A M



CSHB 293(STA) was REPORTED out of conmittee with

a "do pass” reconmmendation and wth one
previously published fiscal inmpact note: FNL
(ADM) .

HB 324 CONTROLLED SUBST. PRESCRI PTI ON DATABASE
HB 324 was SCHEDULED but not HEARD
HB 328 BOARD/ LI CENSI NG OF MASSAGE THERAPI STS

CSHB 328 (L&C) was REPORTED out of conmittee with

a "do pass” recommendation and wth one
previously published fiscal inmpact note: FNL
(CED) .

Vi ce-Chair Neunan relayed that HB 324 had been renoved from
t he nmeeting agenda.

#hb328
HOUSE BI LL NO. 328

"An Act establishing the Board of Massage Therapists;
relating to the licensing of nassage therapists; and
providing for an effective date."

8:41: 39 AM

REPRESENTATI VE BENJAM N NAGEAK, SPONSOR, introduced the
| egislation. He stated that HB 328 established a Board of
Massage Ther api sts and provi ded regul ati on for
certification. The legislation included ethical standards,
accountability, business devel opnent, grievance processes,
and facilitated better access to therapy.

MARY SCHLOSSER, STAFF, REPRESENTATIVE BENJAM N NAGEAK
shared that Alaska was one of six states that did not
regul ate nassage therapy. She relayed that regulation was a
matter of public safety and professionalism Regulation
facilitated standards for care and the state was "behind

the curve” in regulation of nassage therapy. Licensure
al | oned massage therapists to becone "in network" providers
and directly bill insurance conpanies, which "endorsed

smal | business” by allowng the therapist to operate nore
i ndependently. She cited that Forbes Magazine (Fall 2013)
rated states for business friendliness; Alaska rated 37th

House Fi nance Conmmittee 2 04/03/14 8:41 A M



out of 50 and Alaska was ranked 44th for its regulatory
environment. She believed that the |egislation encouraged
greater professional opportunities in a grow ng profession.
Ei ghty-four percent of massage therapists supported state
| icensure. She urged the conmmittee to support t he
| egi sl ati on.

Representative WIson asked how regulating the industry
woul d make the state nore business friendly.

Ms. Schlosser replied that I|icensure allowed the nmassage
therapist to directly bill i nsurance conpanies which
encour aged sel f - enpl oynent .

Vice-Chair Neuman asked for an explanation of changes
cont ai ned in t he House Labor and Commer ce
Comm ttee Substitute (CS).

Ms. Schl osser explained that the change on page 3, line 28
added a board approved apprenticeship program Another
change ti ght ened exenption | anguage for struct ural
integration practitioners and Rolfers. The third change
| ocated on page 8, lines 1 through 8 conbined a category of
exenpt ed practices wi t hout nam ng t he i ndi vi dua

nodalities. She cited page 3, line 24 and page 4, |ine 18,
and noted that the word "board" was changed to "departnent"”
for application processing purposes. Located in the
transition |anguage, the 500 hour requirenent for licensure
was wai ved for nassage therapist already practicing in the
state as long as outlying standards were net.

Vice-Chair Neuman asked if the sponsor agreed with the
changes.

Ms. Schl osser replied in the affirmative.

Representati ve Munoz asked where the apprenticeship program
was | ocated in the |egislation.

Ms. Schlosser replied that the provision was |ocated on
page 3, line 28.

Representative Minoz supported the program and was glad to
see the bill noving forward.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 3 04/03/14 8:41 A M



Representati ve Edgnon appreciated the bill and viewed it as
a pro-business bill. He asked for clarification regarding
the required 500 hours for |icensure.

Ms. Schlosser replied that a person would have to attend a
board approved massage schools and that currently none
exi sted in Al aska.

Representative Edgnon wondered whether the legislation
woul d foster the establishnent of a massage therapy school
in the state.

Ms. Schl osser thought that presently not enough demand
existed in the state.

Represent ati ve Edgnon asked whether |icensing fees would be
determ ned by the departnent.

Ms. Schlosser deferred the question to the Department of
Commerce, Community and Econom c Devel opnent ( DCCED)

Representative GQuttenberg supported the |legislation. He
guestioned the nenbership of the board. He wondered whet her
the conposition of the board; four practicing nmassage
t herapists and one nenber of the public, was standard
practice of board nenbership. He thought that nore of a
bal ance between nenbers of the public and |licensed
practitioners was typical for other boards.

Ms. Schl osser answered that the board was small and woul d
allow nore therapists to participate on the board.

JILL MOTZ, LICENSED MASSAGE THERAPI ST, CHUGQ AK AND EAGLE
RIVER (via teleconference), spoke in support of the
| egi sl ati on. She announced that she was a massage therapi st
and believed that the |legislation wuld further the
prof ession by assuring educational standards and an
opportunity to fully participate in the "evolving" field of
health care. She thought that the public was entitled to a
mnimum |evel of protection provided by the bill. She
reported that she currently practiced nmssage in two
Burroughs and was assessed licensing fees in both |ocations
and estimated that the state licensing cost would be |ess
expensive than under the current structure. She did not
bel i eve the proposed |icensing costs were burdensone.

8: 55: 08 AM

House Fi nance Conmmittee 4 04/03/14 8:41 A M



AVMANDA UNSER, ALASKA MASSAGE THERAPY LI CENSI NG COALI TI ON
ANCHORAGE (via teleconference), testified in support of the
bill. She stated that she served on the board of the Al aska
chapter of the Anerican Massage Therapy Associ ation (AMIA).
She expl ained that the coalition was forned in 2012 for the
purpose of <crafting a licensing bill. Qher healthcare
prof essions such as Chiropractors supported HB 328. She
clarified that there was currently two massage therapy
schools in Anchorage that offered 500 hour, nationally
approved prograns.

Representative GQuttenberg asked whether she was the head of
the coalition and if she was aware of the responsibilities
of licensing board nenbers.

Ms. Unser replied in the affirmative and relayed that
di scussions were held wth other professional board
nmenbers. She believed nassage therapists were ready to
govern their profession.

VOLKER RUBY, SELF, ANCHORAGE (via teleconference), spoke in
favor of the legislation. He related that he was the
Treasurer of the Al aska chapter of the AMIA and practiced
massage therapy for twelve years. The bill would provide
therapists with the freedomto practice nmassage anywhere in
the state and only pay one yearly fee. He thought that the
fees would be less expensive than nmunicipal fees. The
licensing fees would fund the board, which elimnated costs
for the state. The proposed state |icense sets professiona
standards for nmassage therapy, protected the public, and
expanded opportunities for massage therapists. He urged the
commttee to support HB 328.

DI ANE KYSER, PROPRIETOR, ARTEM S ENTERPRI SE, testified in
support of the legislation. She reported that she operated
her own massage therapy business for twenty years. She
spoke to her work history and various duties related to
massage therapy. She voiced that the legislation set a
standard for nmassage therapy training in the state. She
pointed to page 3, line 22 and lines 26 through 29 that
required evidence that the practitioner conpleted a 500
hour course of study to qualify for a license. The bill
woul d aut horize the board to determ ne the requirenents for
continuing education. She estimated that three massages per
year would pay for her annual I|icensing fees and stated
that the cost was tax deductible. She believed that HB 328
woul d provide consistent and updated educational standards

House Fi nance Conmmittee 5 04/03/14 8:41 A M



for massage therapy in the state and ensure consuner
protection.

Representative Quttenberg thanked M. Kyser for her
testinmony. He noted that nmany people were nervous about
goi ng to massage therapi sts.

Ms. Kyser replied that she provided education and
information to first-tinme clients on nassage procedures,
what to expect during a massage, and how to be a snmart
consuner of nassage therapy services.

Representative (Guttenberg asked for verification that
currently rmassage therapists could not bill clients
directly and that HB 328 woul d authorize direct billing by
t he massage therapi st.

Ms. Kyser replied in the affirmative.

Representative GQuttenberg asked whether a referral was
necessary.

Ms. Kyser answered that direct insurance billing required a
professional |icensing board and referral from a nedical
doctor or chiropractor. She reiterated that the bill would
provi de massage therapists the option to bill insurance.

Representative WIson wondered whether she understood that
the licensing fee could be increased in the future.

Ms. Kyser replied in the affirmative. She had served as a
medi cal |icensing assistant and understood the issue.

Representative Gara noted that he had signed on as a
cosponsor.

9:07:13 AM

VI CTORI A DANCE, MASSAGE THERAPI ST, JUNEAU, spoke in
opposition to the bill. She reported that she was a
licensed nmssage therapist in Arizona since 1984, was a
menber of AMIA, and currently worked for six years in a
massage therapy clinic in Juneau. She offered that she only
opposed the bill in its current structure. She confirnmed
t hrough the AMIA that the 500 hour standard was arbitrary.
The only available data was from AMIA through its Entry
Level Analysis Project that concluded that conpetency was

House Fi nance Conmmittee 6 04/03/14 8:41 A M



achieved at 625 hours of training. She proposed that the

500 hour requi r enent in the legislation should be
i ncreased. She stated that nassage therapists would not be
able to bill insurance directly if the bill passed. She

pointed to prior testinmony from Marty Hester, Deputy
Director of the Division of Insurance, DCCED. She spoke to
the licensing fees associated with the bill. She cited an
emai | she had received from Don Habeger, Director, Division
of Corporations, Business and Professional Licensing, DCCED
that stated that the fee would be approximately $550. The
fee was different than what the coalition had stated, was
hi gher than what nunicipalities charged, and higher than
the anobunt a doctor paid. She felt the cost would be a
"burden." She added that California only required voluntary
certification and massage was regulated through nunicipa

or di nances. She bel i eved t hat muni ci palities wer e
regul ati ng massage cost effectively and was not sure that
state |l aw was necessary to regulate the field.

Ms. Dance reported that the nmassage therapy board was
nodel ed after the social worker board. She believed that
massage therapy licensure was "vulnerable”™ to higher
licensing fees due to investigations. The "massage parlor”
trade did not exist in other professions and nmade nassage
therapy nore susceptible to investigations. She was
i nf ornmed t hat i nvestigative costs wer e not t he
responsibility of the board but discovered that was not
true. She nentioned that other boards were currently in
deficit and the investigation issue "nade her nervous" in
relation to the potential for increasing licensing fees.
She related that she was confused by the fiscal note.

Ms. Dance continued to discuss her opposition to the bill
She communi cated that she had received 22 signatures in the

past one and a half days in opposition to the bill and
wondered why the supporters of the |egislation spoke of
"overwhel m ng support.” The Ilegislation did not define

massage therapists as health care providers. She reiterated
her concerns related to the bill.

Ms. Dance stated that a conpetency standard of 500 hours
was sufficient for relaxation massage but not adequate for
nmedi cal massage. She noted the flaw in the survey used to

justify support for the bill. She pointed out that only 40
percent of 43 survey participants wanted licensure if the
bill "was done right." She shared that her goal was to

ensure massage |licensing was "done right."

House Fi nance Conmmittee 7 04/03/14 8:41 A M



Vice-Chair Neuman noted that Sara Chanbers, Di rect or
D vision of Corporations, Business, and Public Licensing,
DCCED woul d address the committee.

Ms. Dance requested that M. Chanbers show the conmttee
how the licensing fees were calculated and whether it was
possible to calculate fees in relation to projecting board
deficits which take years to accrue.

Representative CQuttenberg did not believe the |legislature
was qualified nor could develop a perfect nodel for the
board. He noted that the board could set higher standards
if it wanted. The | egislature approved an opti mum nodel for
setting up the board and let the professionals govern
t hensel ves. He indicated that the therapists would not want
the legislature mcromanaging its board. He stated that a
perfect bill was hardly ever seen.

Ms. Dance spoke about the Alaska Constitution. She was
inspired by the process of its creation. She noted that
when massage therapy was initially |icensed mstakes were
made. One-third of states in the Lower 48 had increased
hour requirenments. She recomended that the bill include a
provi sion that the board could rai se hour requirenents.

Representative Quttenberg noted that the board did not need
the |l egislature' s perm ssion.

Ms. Dance asked for clarification.

Vi ce- Chair Neunman noted that the departnent woul d respond.

Representative Edgnon wonder ed what pr of essi onal
experiences in or out of the state were driving her
opposition to the bill and how | ong she had been practicing

massage i n Al aska.

9:20: 30 AM

Ms. Dance answered that she had been in Juneau for 6 years
and had been a nmassage therapist for 30 years. She relayed
that she was close to retirenment and "had nothing to gain"
in her position on the bill.

Representative Edgnon clarified that he was not trying to

undercut M. Dance's testinony. He wondered whether a
heal th care provider should be added to the board.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 8 04/03/14 8:41 A M



Ms. Dance responded in the affirmative. She expl ained that
it was especially inportant in light of the professions
movenent into nedical nassage. In sonme state statutes
massage therapists were desighated as health care
providers. She felt that the designation was inportant and
recommended inclusion if the bill aimed to support the
pr of essi on.

Representative WIson comented on nunicipal ordinance
versus state licensing. She noted the opposing points of
Vi ew. She wondered whether the rmunicipalities could
regul at e nassage therapy.

Vice-Chair Neuman surmsed that nmunicipalities had the
authority to require |licenses.

Representati ve Thonpson agreed with the statenent.

Representative WIson wondered whether nunicipalities would
be relieved fromlicensing with passage of the bill

Representative Thonpson stated that wth passage of the
bill both entities would be involved in Ilicensing. He
di scerned that the reason nunicipalities regulated nassage
therapy was to ensure public safety. Once a conmunity or
municipality realized that nmssage therapy was state
licensed and regulated they would nost |ikely wthdrawal
their requirenents.

Representative WIson wondered whether nunicipalities would
relinquish its regulatory role if the bill was adopted. She
guestioned whether the legislation allowed for direct
i nsurance billing.

Ms. Unser replied that the insurance conpany dictated the

billing requirenents; who can bill and whether a referral
was necessary. She shared that she was licensed in
Washi ngton and billed insurance for 6 years. She cited page
9, Section 7 beginning on line 12 and noted that the

section clarified the state versus nunicipality I|icensing
i ssue:

Sec. 7. AS 29.35 is anmended by adding a new section to
read: Sec. 29.35.146. Licensing of massage therapists.
(a) The authority to I|license nmassage therapists is
reserved to the state, and, except as specifically
provided by statute, a nunicipality nmay not enact or

House Fi nance Conmmittee 9 04/03/14 8:41 A M



enforce an ordinance requiring professional |icensure
of massage therapists. (b) This section applies to
home rul e and general |aw nmunicipalities.

MVs. Unser reported that ~currently Anchorage, Valdez,
Fai rbanks, and Palnmer regulated nassage therapy. Each
muni cipality regulated mssage differently and state
licensure would honbgenize regulations. She stated that
once state regulation was established "nmunicipalities would
nore than likely w thdraw "

Representative Mnoz asked how nany practitioners were
anticipated to take advantage of the |egislation.

SARA  CHAMBERS, Dl RECTCR, DIVISION OF  CORPORATI ONS,
BUSI NESS, AND PUBLIC LICENSING DEPARTMENT OF COMVERCE
COWUNI TY AND ECONOM C DEVELOPMENT, replied that the
department estimated approxi mately 600 |icensees.

Representative Mnoz reported that the fiscal note (FNL
(CED) contained an annual appropriation of $50 thousand and
woul d be revenue neutral. She noted that divided anpbng 600
i censees the $550 figure quoted for annual fees was high

She asked what the anticipated anount of the annual
i censing fee was.

Ms. Chanbers answered that the fiscal note appropriation
did not reflect the departnment's full costs. She expl ai ned
that the fiscal note was prepared according to the Ofice
of Managenent and Budget (OVB) standards and did not
include potenti al future anticipated additional costs
outlined in the last paragraph of the fiscal note analysis.
The fiscal note and additional costs were based on
conparabl e existing |licensing prograns such as the Board of
Social Wrk Exam ners. The division's rough estinmate was
approximately $550 to $600 and the first biennial could
cost nore than the out years due to set up costs.

Vi ce-Chair Neuman request ed t hat she di scuss t he
information regarding all of the fiscal aspects, true
startup costs, and indirect costs of board establishnent.

Representative Minoz stated that a $550 fee would generate
over $250 thousand in revenue and that the fiscal note
appropriated $69.8 thousand in FY 14 and $49.9 thousand in
the out years. She asked for clarification.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 10 04/03/14 8:41 A M



9:31: 06 AM

Ms. Chanbers replied that the fiscal note indicated the
"difference in the requested appropriation not the full
cost of the program”

Representative Munoz asked whether the program costs would
i ncrease to $250,000 to $300, 000.

Ms. Chanbers answered that the fiscal note was based on
antici pated expenses according to the fee setting statute,
AS 08. 01. 065.

Representative Munoz believed that the figure was very high
and requested "nmore clarity" on the issue. She asked
whet her massage therapist would be able to directly bill
i nsur ance.

Ms. Chanbers expressed uncertainty and offered that the
issue was a Division of Insurance function.

Representative WIson asked whether there was a sunset
included in the bill.

Representative Holnes pointed to Section 3, page 2, lines
14 through 15 and relayed that the board sunsets on June
30, 2018.

Representative WIson observed that short sunset dates
provided for revisions if necessary.

Vice-Chair Neuman noted that there would be a mandatory
| egi sl ative budget and audit sunset review He asked about
the fiscal inplications of the board costs, startup costs,
and indirect costs.

Ms. Chanmbers responded that the Board of Social Wrk
Exam ners provided the nost simlarities for the division
the use as a nodel for the massage therapy board. She
detailed that the division enployed the information from
the social work board extracted from the divisions annua

report provided to the legislature (found on DCCED
website). The division averaged the cost figures for the
social work board over the last six years, or three
bi ennium (the licensing period ran for one biennium and the
report spanned t hree bi enni un) . The costs wer e
approxi mately $200,000 for the last three biennial periods.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 11 04/03/14 8:41 A M



The costs had increased slightly and total revenues for
each biennium had been $200,000. The social work board had
varied above and bel ow the $200, 000 figure and the division
pl anned to recomend a fee increase. She continued that the
direct expenditures of the board included personal services
for staff and travel, contractual services wth entities
such as Departnent of Law (DLAW and Ofice of
Adm nistrative Hearing, and day-to-day comopdities and
totaled roughly $200 thousand in the last biennium The
i nvestigative cost was included in the direct costs for the
boar d.

MVs. Chanbers discussed investigative procedures. She
expounded that each board was nmandated to investigate any
potential licensing violations and were carried out by the
division's investigative unit. The board of nassage therapy
would fall under the departnment's purview of nornal
operation of investigations concerning civil investigations
in order to maintain standards and the board woul d bear the
full cost of civil investigations. Crimnal investigations

such as prostitution would fall wunder the jurisdiction of
muni ci pal |aw enforcenent. The costs were not incurred by
the licensees. She nmentioned that iif a |licensee was
convicted of prostitution the conviction could lead to a
Iicense action. She noted that the |aw was not atypical and
her exanples were based on very "real possibilities of
i nvestigative action."”

Ms. Chanbers related that indirect expenditures were a cost
all ocation program that filtered down through the division
and born by all licensees and reflected an "overhead cost
of doing business.” She listed sonme indirect costs: |ights,
desks, human resources, technical support, etc. The |aw
required that all of the costs were the responsibility of
the |icensee.

Representative Minoz, in response to a question by, Vice-
Chair Neuman, reiterated her concern regarding the
licensing fee matching the costs of the program and not
assessi ng hi gher fees than necessary.

Ms. Chanber restated that the fiscal note "was not the
nmet hod used to determne the full costs" for the |icensees.
She offered to provide a nore detailed analysis than
provided in the fiscal note.

House Fi nance Committee 12 04/03/14 8:41 A M



Representati ve Thonpson questioned the anpunt that doctor's
paid for their professional |icensing.

Ms. Chanbers explained that the full cost of the activity
incurred by the board was shared by the nunber of
licensees. A 600 nenber board had a higher licensing fee
than a larger board of 2,500, which was the size of the
board for physicians. Oher factors that affected costs
were operational and investigative costs. The direct costs
of the massage therapy board were estinated to be |less than
t he physician's board. The nedical board paid approximtely
$200 bi annual | y.

9:41: 23 AM

Representative Edgnon remarked that the bill was very
detailed but he did not see provisions regarding board
nmenber confirmation. He <cited page 11 and noted the
provision which required initial board nenbers to have
practiced massage for three years prior to appointnent. He
asked for clarification about the subsequent confirmation
process.

Ms. Chanbers replied that the division would review the
transitional |anguage with the governor's Ofice of Boards
and Conmmi ssions deternmining the process of "grandfathering”
i ndi viduals based on their background. The transitional
| anguage would be used to determne eligibility for the
initial board appointnents.

Representative Edgnmon wondered why the mnassage therapy
board nenbers would not need confirmation by the
| egi sl ature.

Ms. Chanbers wunderstood that the typical confirmation
process would be followed for the nmassage therapy board and
| egi sl ative approval was required.

Representative Edgnmon asked why a |icensed nmassage
therapist had to wait three years before a therapist could
be appointed to the board.

Ms. Chanbers deferred to the sponsor to answer the
guesti on.

Ms. Unser answered that massage therapists requested three
years of experience prior to board appointnent to be able

House Fi nance Conmmittee 13 04/03/14 8:41 A M



to nake npore informed decisions from a real wor | d
under st andi ng of the profession.

Representative Edgnmon wondered why a licensed health care
prof essi onal was not designated a seat on the board.

Ms. Unser replied that the nenbers of the coalition did not
want another health care provider on the board to avoid
conflicts of interest wth the health care provider's
parti cul ar prof ession.

Representative GQuttenberg asked about qualification for
licensing. He noted that certification required at | east
500 hours of education or via a board certified
apprenticeship program He surnmised that the board could
increase the 500 hour requirenent but could not decrease
the requirenment below 500 hours or the individual nust
attend an accredited school. He asked whether his statement
was correct.

Ms. Chanbers understood that the board would have the
di scretion to increase the nunber of hours above 500 if the
board determ ned the increase was in the best interest of
t he profession.

Vi ce- Chair Neuman CLOSED public testinony.

Representative Gara requested a |[egal opinion from
Legi slative Legal Services regarding the confirmtion
process. He declared that the prosecution of prostitution
woul d not be an additional cost borne by the board.

Representative Minoz requested clarity on the direct
billing question.

Representative WIlson reviewed the fiscal note from the
Depart ment of Commerce, Community and Econom c Devel opnent,
FN1 (CED). She noted that $69.8 thousand was appropriated
in FY 15 and the anmount of $49.9 thousand was appropriated
in the out years FY 16 through FY 20.

Representative WI|son MOVED to REPORT CSHB 328(STA) out of
comittee Wi th i ndi vi dual recommendat i ons and t he
acconpanyi ng fiscal note.

Representative Guttenberg OBJECTED for discussion. He
appreciated the dialog and believed HB 328 was "a nodel

House Fi nance Committee 14 04/03/14 8:41 A M



piece of legislation,” which allowed the board to govern
t heir profession.

Representative GQuttenberg WTHDREW his OBJECTION. There
being NO further OBJECTION, it was so ordered.

CSHB 328 (L&C) was REPORTED out of commttee with a "do
pass" recomendation and wth one previously published
fiscal inpact note: FN1 (CED).

9:51:19 AM
AT EASE

9:53: 20 AM
RECONVENED

#hb293
HOUSE BI LL NO. 293

"An Act relating to notor vehicle registration plates;
and providing for an effective date.”

9: 53: 43 AM

CHERE KLEIN, STAFF, REPRESENTATIVE PEGGY WLSON, discussed
the legislation. She explained that the bear license plate
was originally the state's bicentennial |icense plate and
was recognized in the Lower 48 as an iconic "synbol of
Al aska." She cited a recent carinsurance.com pole that
di scovered that Alaska's plain yellow |icense plate was the
| east favored of all states. The Ilegislation provided

residents the option of obtaining the bear plate as their
primary |icense plate. She referenced a discussion wth a
past comm ssioner of the Departnment of Public Safety (DPS)
who expl ained that the bear was chosen in 1975 because the
bear represented a comonality for all Al askans. Bear
habitat was found throughout the entire state. She reported
that the legislation changed words in statute for specialty
license plates for "active" and "forner" firefighters and
EMIs. The bill renoved the words "active" and "former" so
that all firefighters; volunteer, paid, former, or retired
had the opportunity to be recognized for their service and
it decreased the years of service requirenent for forner or
retired firefighters and EMIS fromten years to five years.
The cost of the license plate would be $30.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 15 04/03/14 8:41 A M



Vi ce-Chair Neunman suggested that the license plate could
nore easily identify a person as nedi cal personnel.

Representative Holnes appreciated the bill. She expressed
support for the bill. She clarified that the intent of the
| egislation was to provide two official license plates at

the cost of $30.
Ms. Klein replied in the affirmative.

Representative WIson discussed the fiscal note from the
Departnment of Administration (DOA) FN1 (ADM. She rel ayed
that $3.2 thousand was appropriated in FY 15 and was a
zero note in the out years.

AMY  ERI CKSON, Dl RECTOR, DVISION OF MOTOR VEH CLES,
DEPARTMENT OF ADM NI STRATI ON, responded to Representative
Hol mes’ question regarding cost. She comented that the
| egi sl ation woul d not change the fees and the bear would be
an alternate primary plate.

Representative Holnmes shared that people she polled
preferred the look of the original license plate calling
the design "retro." She requested that the departnent keep
t he original design.

Representative WIlson MOVED to REPORT CSHB 293(STA) out of
committee W th i ndi vi dual recommendat i ons and t he
acconpanyi ng fiscal note. There being NO OBJECTION, it was
so ordered.

CSHB 293(STA) was REPORTED out of conmittee with a "do
pass" recomendation and wth one previously published
fiscal inpact note: FN1 (ADM .

#hb324
HOUSE BI LL NO. 324

"An Act relating to the controlled substance prescription
dat abase. "

HB 324 was SCHEDULED but not HEARD.

#
ADJ QURNVENT

10: 01: 16 AM

House Fi nance Conmmittee 16 04/03/14 8:41 A M



The neeting was adjourned at 10:00 a. m

House Fi nance Conmmittee 17 04/03/14 8:41 A M



